
 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers (via GoToMeeting) 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, Washington 

 

August 24, 2021 

2:00 p.m. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated August 17, 2021 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated August 24, 2021 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes August 10, 2021 

 

VII. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Quarterly Finance Update (NICK) 

 

VIII. EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE (TIM/AMBER) 

 

IX. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Vista Field  

1. Design Standards, Elizabeth Plater-Zyberk and Matthew Lambert (LARRY)  

2. Property Owners Association, Ben Floyd (LARRY) 

B. Columbia Gardens 

1. Design Standards, MAKERS (LARRY) 

2. Property/Neighborhood Association-Policy Decisions (LARRY) 

3. Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) Signage (TANA) 

C. Formal Approval of CEO’s Goal #5 (Waterfront Master Plan) of the CEO’s 2019/20 Goals and 

Objectives; and Goal #4 (Acceptance of 1135 Application) of the CEO’s 2021/22 Goals and 

Objectives; Resolution 2021-14 (NICK) 

  

Effective June 30, 2021, and subject to conditions in Governor Inslee’s Proclamation 20-28.15 which extends the 

substantive provisions contained in Proclamation 20.28.14.   

Port Commission Meetings will be conducted remotely until further notice. 

 

A GoToMeeting has been arranged to enable the public to listen and make public comments remotely.   

To participate remotely, please use the following call-in information:   

1-866-899-4679, Access Code: 795-684-389  

 

 

 

 



AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick 

Regular Commission Business Meeting 

August 24, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

IX. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS (Continued) 

 

D. Governance Audit Update (TIM) 

E. Potential Property Purchase, Available Funding Options and Listing Agreement (TIM)  

F. Commission Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

G. Non-Scheduled Items 

(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/NICK/LARRY/AMBER/LUCINDA/TIM/TOM/SKIP/DON) 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record, if not stated 

previously) 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





PORT OF KENNEWICK 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      

  DRAFT  AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES 

   

Page 1 of 7 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 

Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 

Commission President Commissioner Don Barnes called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 

2:01 p.m. via GoToMeeting Teleconference.  
  

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 

The following were present: 
 

Board Members: Commissioner Don Barnes, President (via telephone) 

 Skip Novakovich, Vice-President (via telephone) 

 Thomas Moak, Secretary (via telephone) 
  

Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 

 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 

 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate and Operations (via telephone) 

 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Development (via telephone) 

 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator  

 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone) 

 Lucinda Luke, Port Counsel (via telephone) 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Commissioner Barnes led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA     
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Agenda as presented; Commissioner 

Moak  seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
No comments were made. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA   
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated July 15, 2021 

Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $71,657.10 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated July 27, 2021 

Expense Fund Voucher Number 103054 through 103085 for a grand total of $63,683.35 

C. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated August 3, 2021 

Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $83,736.31 

D. Approval of Warrant Register Dated August 10, 2021 

Expense Fund Voucher Number 103086 through 103124 for a grand total of $107,392.94 

E. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes July 13, 2021 

F. Approval of Special Commission Meeting Minutes July 20, 2021 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
DRAFT 

Page 2 of 7 

MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Consent Agenda;  Commissioner Moak 

seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 

EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE 
Ms. Hanchette reported that a few of our mobile vendors are experiencing food shortages in the food 

supply chain and may have modified hours of operation during this shortage.   

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Columbia Gardens

1. Property Owners Association

Mr. Peterson briefed the Commission on the memo regarding the Columbia Gardens

Property Owners Association.  Mr. Peterson stated the Property Owners Association (POA)

needs to be in place prior to selling lots at Columbia Gardens.  Mr. Peterson stated the

neighborhood consists of businesses, developers and tenants and the Port and there are six

categories that are considered foundational items:  roadways, parking lots, street lighting,

landscaping, food truck plaza, and pending projects such as the EV charging stations and

shipping container bathroom and proposed Kiwanis playground and vibrancy fund.  Mr.

Peterson stated some of these items fall under the overall Port mission while others seem

to be clearly neighborhood responsibilities and a few items fall under a grey area.  Staff

estimates maintenance expenses are approximately $110,000 on an annual basis.  Mr.

Peterson outlined several scenarios for the POA.

Commissioner Barnes stated because the pending items are not in place, there is an 

opportunity have the POA in place with provisions to begin incrementally small and 

increase as tenants, businesses, and amenities are in place.  Additionally, he would like to 

see the POA have the ability to vote and/or approve adding assets to the area and approve 

funding the maintenance. Commissioner Barnes would like a staff recommendation for a 

starting point for the POA.  Commissioner Barnes would prefer that the Port can modify 

the POA as necessary. 

Commissioner Novakovich believes it would be a huge disservice to the small businesses 

at Columbia Gardens to impose charges on them now.  Commissioner Novakovich stated 

the Port does not need to make a profit and believes the Port has an obligation to help 

incubate these small businesses that took a chance on revitalizing the area.  With the current 

situation, businesses are not making a lot of money and to assess them and charge them for 

services they are already receiving for free is a mistake.  Commissioner Novakovich does 

not think this is the right time to implement a POA and start charging the businesses but 

continue providing the services to help the businesses be successful.    

Commissioner Moak stated the Port constructed several buildings and installed roads and 

amenities and believes every business should invest in the neighborhood.  Commissioner 

Moak agrees with Commissioner Novakovich that today is not the right time to charge 

tenants, but eventually we will be out of this emergency and business will resume.  

Commissioner Moak believes it should be a shared responsibility between the Port and 

tenants/owners and the amount should escalate as more buildings and tenants move in. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
DRAFT 

Page 3 of 7 

Commissioner Moak inquired if the POA was subject to state pay prevailing wages for 

maintenance.   

Mr. Peterson stated Mr. DiJulio summarized that when the Port makes up less than 50% of 

the assessments then the POA would not be subject to prevailing wage.  

Commissioner Moak would like to see staff develop a scenario with equity.  Commissioner 

Moak reiterated that assessing tenants does not need to happen as soon as possible, but 

eventually, the responsibility should be shared. 

Commissioner Novakovich believes there should be an assessment of current tenants 

tolerance to paying additional fees and their willingness to pay.  Commissioner Novakovich 

is concerned about imposing fees and losing tenants. 

Commissioner Barnes stated for the long-term management and oversight of Columbia 

Gardens, the POA needs to be set up for the future.  Furthermore, the Port does not need to 

impose fees at this time, but rather start in small increments.    

Mr. Peterson will narrow the focus and refine the details based upon the Commission 

comments. 

2. Kiwanis Playground Update

Mr. Arntzen updated the Commission on the Kiwanis Playground project and stated he has

tentatively selected Energy Northwest as the project management firm.  The Kiwanis would

like to meet the firm prior to the Port hiring the firm. Additionally, Mr. Arntzen would like

to meet with City Manager Marie Mosley again about the City’s potential participation.

Maureen Bell stated the Kiwanis are anxious to move forward on this project and start

fundraising.

Commissioner Moak appreciates Mr. Arntzen’s work regarding the project management

firm to advance the playground project.

B. Vista Field

1. Design Standards, Elizabeth Plater-Zyberk of DPZ Co-Design

Mr. Peterson introduced Elizabeth Plater-Zyberk and Matt Lambert of DPZ Co-Design,

who will be discussing the working design standards for Vista Field.

Ms. Plater-Zyberk outlined proposed design standards and regulations for Vista Field.

(Exhibit A)

Mr. Peterson stated the document will lay out the design standards for builders and

developers and provide options to build.  The document will also fold in the collaborative

design process and how the town architect will engage with the private sector.  Mr. Peterson



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
DRAFT 

Page 4 of 7 

anticipates the draft design standards will be presented at the August 24, 2021, Regular 

Commission Meeting.   

Mr. Lambert stated the full draft provides a more in-depth review of the details. 

Commission discussion ensued regarding the details of the presentation. 

C. 1135 Project Update

Ms. Bader Inglima reported the US Army Corps of Engineers awarded the 1135 project to TDX

Power Services, LLC.  They are a tribal affiliated company which has an office in Walla Walla.

TDX recently worked with the USACE on a Mill Creek fish ladder and bridge upgrade project

near Walla Walla Community College.  We have our first construction team planning meeting set

for August 25, 2021.  Following that, Port staff will develop a scope of work and secure a contract

with the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR) for cultural resource

monitoring during the shoreline restoration work, which is expected to begin in October.  We are

preparing signage for The Willows, which will be used as a laydown yard and signage to be placed

near the Lighthouse for staging and construction.  Additionally, there will be an article in the

newsletter to alert people of the upcoming project and Ms. Bader Inglima will be working with the

media to advertise and communicate with tenants and island users regarding the improvements and

impacts to parking.  After 13 years, the shoreline restoration project is finally happening.

D. Senator Murray notice: EDA Grant Programs

Ms. Bader Inglima stated Senator Murray’s office, TRIDEC, and the Benton Franklin Council of

Governments (BFCOG) shared information regarding an Economic Development Administration

(EDA) grant programs for the coming year.  The Biden Administration has committed to providing

$3,000,000,000 in EDA funding to communities recovering from the economic impact of the

public health crisis caused by COVID-19.  Ms. Bader Inglima stated the programs include

Indigenous Communities Challenge; Good Jobs Challenge; Build Back Better Regional Challenge;

Economic Adjustment Assistance Challenge; Travel, Tourism, and Outdoor Recreation Grants;

and Statewide Planning, Research and Networks Grants.  Ms. Bader Inglima attended a BFCOG

workshop and researched the programs and found that they do not align with our current work

plans.  Ms. Bader Inglima will attend the TRIDEC workshop on August 23, 2021 and report back

to the Commission if there is anything new or meaningful.

Commissioner Moak inquired if staff has reached out to CTUIR for a potential partnership at Vista 

Field. 

Ms. Bader Inglima can reach out to see if the CTUIR is exploring any projects under the Indigenous 

Communities Challenge program.  Ms. Bader Inglima stated that program is limited to applications 

by Native and Indigenous people.  The Port could not apply for that program, but rather support 

the CTUIR’s application.   



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
DRAFT 

Page 5 of 7 

E. WPPA Small Ports Conference

Ms. Scott stated the Washington Public Ports Association (WPPA) is holding their Small Ports

Conference on October 21-22, 2021, in Leavenworth.  As of now, they have yet to decide if the

conference will also be held virtually.  Ms. Scott stated if the Commission is interested in

attending, please email her or Ms. Yates.

Mr. Arntzen stated due to the increase in the Delta Variant of COVID, staff will not be attending

the conference in person.  The Port has taken a conservative approach to COVID and he would

like to continue on that path.

It is the Consensus of the Commission to not attend the WPPA Small Ports Conference in person, in 

alignment with Port staff protocol.  

F. Quarterly Finance Presentation Update

Mr. Arntzen reported that Mr. Kooiker has been working on the financial update and will present 
the update to the Commission at the August 24, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting.

G. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.

H. Non-Scheduled Items

Ms. Bader Inglima stated the Port will be distributing a newsletter in September after a year hiatus. 
Ms. Bader Inglima received an email from Diahann Howard at the Port of Benton stating they are 
hosting the Washington State Rail Caucus tour and reception on September 16-17, 2021.  The Port 
declined to have the tour or reception promoted as a Tri-Port event since we do not have any 
industrial rail projects and are not pursuing rail development or advocating for any rail issues.  Ms. 
Bader Inglima suggested Ms. Howard reach out to the City of Kennewick because of their 13 at 
grade rail crossings.

Mr. Peterson stated staff will be presenting the design standards for Columbia Gardens developed 
by Makers at the August 24, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting.

Commissioner Moak inquired about the 2020 Census report and the deadline for redistricting. Mr. 

Peterson stated the Census report is slated for release on August 12, 2021, which determines how 

many people live in a specific geographical area.  The Port stated our next election is 
November of 2023, so our deadline for redistricting needs to be completed by November of 2022. 
Commissioner Barnes reiterated his concerns that the staffing level at the Port is too low and stated 
the future workload and ambitious projects at Vista Field, Columbia Drive, and Clover Island will 
not decrease or dimmish but continue to ramp up.  Commissioner Barnes is concerned about the 
recent focus at the Port and some of the overall objectives of the work plan states the need to 
remain focused on containing operational expenses and to remain solidly focused on the Port’s 
core business and established priorities, not be swayed by external entities. And yet, we have had



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
   DRAFT  

 

Page 6 of 7 

recent presentations regarding the Odessa aquifer and the Snake River Dams. Commissioner 

Barnes is concerned that the Port is understaffed and not as focused as we could be.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 

 

Commissioner Barnes anticipates the Executive Session will last approximately 55 minutes, Real Estate, 

Minimum Price, per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) with no action and Potential Litigation, per RCW 

43.30.110(1)(i) with no action expected.  Commissioner Barnes asked the public to notify Port staff if they 

will return after the executive session so staff can advise if the session concludes early.  

 

RECESS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Commissioner Barnes recessed the Regular Commission Meeting at 4:18 p.m. and convened the 

Executive Session at 4:20 p.m. for 55 minutes. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A. Real Estate, Minimum Price per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) 

B. Potential Litigation per RCW 43.30.110(1)(i) 

 

Commissioner Barnes adjourned the Executive Session at 5:09 p.m.  

 

Commissioner Barnes reconvened the Regular Commission Meeting at 5:12 p.m.  

 

COMMISSION COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 5:13 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   AUGUST 10, 2021 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
   DRAFT  

 

Page 7 of 7 

APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

  

      

 
Don Barnes, President 
 

 

 

 

       

 
Skip Novakovich, Vice President 

 

 
 

 

      

  
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



Vista Field
Phase One

Design Regulations

August 10, 2021
DPZ CoDesign and Cascadia Team

Port of Kennewick

EXHIBIT A



Vista Field Phase One

Residential

• Single family houses, townhouses, 
small ‘mansion’ apartments 

• Party wall, sideyard, courtyard, 
free-standing

• Short front setback
• Rear lane auto entry
• High desert, bungalow, industrial chic, 

mission craftsman style
• Small builder-developer, 

build-to-suit, owner builder

Main Street

• Locally oriented retail
• Continuous building frontage
• Individual bay identity
• One or two story 
• Building base, middle and top
• Shopfront & signage guidelines
• High desert, industrial chic
• Owner tenant or build-to-suit, 

small entrepreneurial developer

Special Mixed-Use

• Water Feature and Azure Drive 
• Commercial below, flexible uses above 
• Priority - restaurants
• Aligned building frontage 
• Two to three stories
• Varied heights and widths
• High desert, industrial chic
• Investor landlord

Live Work

• Flexible use - business use 
below, residence above and  behind

• Services and professionals
• Party wall, sideyard, free-standing
• Short front setback
• Rear lane auto entry
• High desert, industrial chic
• Small builder-developer, 

build-to-suit, owner-builder

EXHIBIT A



Vista Field Phase One

Residential Design

• Ground floor at grade or raised slightly
• Simple massing – aggregation provides complexity and interest
• Building base, middle and top
• Vertically proportioned windows - inset or bays
• Some variety of materials: brick, stucco, cement board, with metal, wood

components 
• Harmonious high-desert colors
• Roofs: flat with parapet; double pitch metal, tile or shingle

Main Street Design

• Tall ground level
• Large shopfront windows, clear glazing
• Recessed doors, clerestories
• Awnings or eyebrows allowed – not galleries or arcades
• Coordinated signage
• Building base, middle and top
• Durable materials: brick, stone, stucco, cement board, metal, wood
• Roofs: flat with parapet; double-pitch metal, tile or shingle; roof gardens 

encouraged

Special Mixed-Use Design

• Large and medium windows, clear glazing; punched openings above
• Recessed doors, clerestories
• Galleries, awnings, eyebrows, dormers allowed
• Tall ground level
• Coordinated signage
• Building base, middle and top
• Durable materials: brick, stone, stucco, cement board, metal and wood
• Roofs: flat with parapet; double pitch tile or metal; roof gardens encouraged

Live Work Design

• Ground floor at sidewalk level
• Variety of window types
• Combined or separate doors for work and live
• Small front setback – garden, seating, displays
• Small cantilevered blade signs
• Variety of materials: brick, stone, stucco, cement board, metal, wood
• Roofs: flat with parapet; double pitch metal, tile or shingle; roof

gardens encouraged

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



Vista Field Phase One - Design Regulations

• Introduction
• Definitions
• Regulating Plan
• Building Types
• Urban Regulations
• Architecture Regulations
• Site & Landscape Regulations
• Thoroughfare Regulations
• Design Review Process

Vista Field Phase One Design Goals

• Inspiring first buildings  
• Setting standard - predictable image and quality of design
• Balancing diversity and harmony in use and design (scale, character)
• Four market segments responsive to current context

Main Street – boulevard - realistic retail
Special Mixed Use – facing water feature – flexible, restaurants
Live-Work - facing water feature – services and professionals
Residential – woonerf – neighborly houses

• Investment return

EXHIBIT A



Vista Field Phase One - Design Regulations

• Type I – residential - small scale neighborly houses and apartments

• Type II – live-work - services and professionals

• Type III – mixed-use - facing water feature – 2-3 stories - restaurant, retail first floor, flexible above

• Type IV – main street - boulevard – 1-2 stories – commercial first floor

EXHIBIT A



Vista Field Phase One - from concept to regulation

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A





Port of Kennewick

Quarterly Budget Update 
– 1st QTR 2021

Managing Resources & 
Accountability 
by Nick Kooiker, CFO/Auditor



Operating Division

Revenue & Expenses

Revenues:
$354,156 

Expenses:
$690,721

• Benchmark of 12.5%

• Marina right on track 
with budget

• Property 
management division 
slightly higher than 
benchmark

• Benchmark of 12.5%

• Overall, under 
benchmark for first 
quarter

• Vista Field Maintenance 
Costs

• Shoreline Maintenance 
Costs



Non-Operating Division

Revenue & Expenses

Revenues:
$4,674,556 

Expenses:
$256,845

• 12.5% Benchmark

• 2021 property taxes 
already booked

• Gain on sale from 
Verbena auction will 
be recognized here

• RCCF

• 12.5% Benchmark

• Sale costs from 
auction



Capital Projects 2021/2022

Item Budget Expended Remaining

Vista Field Loan 
Repayment

$900,000 $0 $900,000

TBD Vista Field 
RCCF Project 

$3,785,000 $30,080 $3,754,920

Vista Field Fire 
Station (City of 
Kennewick)

$125,000 $0 $125,000

Vista Field Well $250,000 $0 $250,000

Vista Field 
“Team”

$150,000 $0 $150,000

Vista Field 
Traffic Impact 
Fund/Central 
Park

$100,000 $0 $100,000

VF Owners’ 
Association 
Fund

$200,000 $7,137 $192,863

VFDF A & B 
Exterior 
Improvements

$600,000 $0 $600,000



Capital Projects 2021/2022

Item Budget Expended Remaining

Shoreline 
Construction

$2,250,000 $1,770 $2,248,230

Clover Island 
Master Plan

$50,000 $52,875 ($2,875)

Columbia Drive & 
Duffy’s Pond

$450,000 $3,911 $446,089

City of Kennewick 
Partnership

$500,000 $0 $500,000

City of Richland /
Island View 
Infrastructure

$800,000 $0 $800,000

City of Richland 
Center Parkway

$400,000 $0 $400,000

Opportunity Fund $300,000 $15,000 $285,000

Port Buildings 
(Asset 
Replacement 
Program)

$500,000 $9,783 $490,217

Miscellaneous 
Capital

$100,000 $5,618 $94,382



Thank You

Nick Kooiker, CFO/Auditor
509-586-1186
nick@portofkennewick.org



     * Benchmarks  Revenues 13% Expenses

     * Ending Cash/Investments

     * Cash Restricted by Commission

     * Accounts, Notes, & Taxes Receivable

     * Total Assets

     * Total Liabilities (not including OPEB or Pension)

 DESCRIPTION 
 2021 & 2022  

BUDGET 
 2021 

ACTUAL 
 2022 

ACTUAL 
 2021/2022 

Actual Total 

 UNDER 
BUDGET 
(OVER) 

% 
Reached 
To Date

OPERATING REVENUES 

     Marine Division 574,975$              75,321$         ‐$                 75,321$               499,654 13%

     Property Management Division 1,873,868$          278,835$       ‐$                 278,835$             1,595,033 15%

          Total Operating Revenues 2,448,843$        354,156$     -$              354,156$          2,094,687 14%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Marine Division 695,747$              101,458$       ‐$                 101,458$             594,289 15%

     Property Management Division 3,156,972$          241,979$       ‐$                 241,979$             2,914,993 8%

     Corporate Division 3,215,296$          347,284$       ‐$                 347,284$             2,868,012 11%

          Total Operating Expenses 7,068,015$        690,721$     -$              690,721$          6,377,294 10%

     OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (4,619,172)$      (336,566)$   -$              (336,566)$         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
     Real Estate Division - Gain (Loss) on Sale of        
Assets 500,000$              ‐$               ‐$                 ‐$                      500,000 0%
     Economic Development & Planning Division 
Grants, Loan & Insurance Proceeds 5,220,000$          121,057$       ‐$                 121,057$             5,098,943 2%

     Ad Valorem Tax 8,826,724$          4,524,590$    ‐$                 4,524,590$          4,302,134 51%

     Other Non-Operating Revenues -$                   -$             -$              ‐$                      0  

     Interest Income ‐$                      28,909$         ‐$                 28,909$               (28,909) ‐

          Total Non-Operating Revenues 14,546,724$      4,674,556$  -$              4,674,556$       9,872,168 32%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

     Real Estate Division 59,945$                8,975$           ‐$                 8,975$                  50,970 15%

     Economic Development & Planning Division 498,525$              36,510$         ‐$                 36,510$               462,015 7%

     Public, Governmental Relations, and Other Non-
Operating Cost 3,303,837$          208,321$       ‐$                 208,321$             3,095,516 6%

     Vista Field Ongoing Closure & Decommissioning 
Cost ‐$                      3,039$           ‐$                 3,039$                  (3,039) #DIV/0!

          Total Non-Operating Expenses 3,862,307$        256,845$     -$              256,845$          3,605,462 7%

Operating & Non-Operating Revenues Over 
Expenses (Under Expenses) 6,065,245$        4,081,145$  -$              4,081,145$       

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 12,663,955$        180,015$       ‐$                 180,015$             12,483,940 1%

These above numbers are unaudited, subject to change and in draft form. Final version of these numbers will be compiled 
on accrual basis of accounting which is required to be reported in a Annual Report and completed by May 31, 2021 as per 
Washington State Auditor’s Office and State Law.  The final version of the Port's Annual Report will be audited by an 
accredited CPA firm or the Washington State Auditor’s Office for accuracy and released to the public.  Therefore, these 
numbers should only be used for internal purposes for benchmarking and making daily management decisions.

1) Accrual accounting requires Ad Valorem Taxes to be recorded when levied, therefore, entire levy amount is reported in above revenues 

regardless when actual cash is received.

13%

12,998,452$                                

2,500,000$                                  

4,124,203$                                  

71,471,618$                                

1,123,509$                                  

NOTES

Notes are integral to the financial highlights

PORT OF KENNEWICK

Financial Highlights

UNAUDITED & IN DRAFT FORM ‐ ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Jan 1, 2021 through March 31, 2021

Financial Highlight Summary





Page 1 of 1 

 

Memorandum  
 

To: Tim Arntzen 
From: Larry Peterson 

Date: August 24, 2021  

Re: Vista Field Design Regulations  

 
OVERVIEW 

The underlying Urban Mixed Use (UMU) zoning at Vista Field was crafted from a perspective of 
allowing a variety of uses and building design rather than the typical approach of tightly 
restricting use and design.  The UMU zoning provides the basic guidance; however, additional 

regulations established and administered by the Port are necessary to help assure Vista Field is 
developed as envisioned by the community and Commission.  Staff has been working with the 
DPZ CoDesign team (Elizabeth Plater-Zyberk, Matt Lambert, Michael Mehaffy & Laurence Qamar) 

to craft design regulations to provide this additional level of design oversight.   
 

The goal of the effort is to provide clear expectations to the Commission, citizens, and 
development community regarding what would and would not be deemed acceptable within the 
Vista Field redevelopment project.  While it is true these regulations require attention to detail, 

the focus has the sometimes subtle ‘little things’ that yield the desired outcome and not a focus 
on “show stopping architecture” or expensive materials.  Providing predictability with reasonable 

ease of understanding to those contemplating developing in Vista Field is another intent of this 
effort. 
 

COMMISSION MEETING PRESENTATION 
Elizabeth Plater-Zyberk and Matt Lambert of DPZ CoDesign will participate and provide a 20–30-
minute overview of the document focusing on the rationale and philosophy behind this effort.  

Both DPZ and staff will be available to address specific questions from the Commission.  A strong 
internet connection seems crucial due to the graphic heavy nature of this agenda item. 

 
ASK of the COMMISSION 
Review of all the details contained throughout the document could take numerous Commission 

meetings; however, I would suggest the Commission focus on the façade renderings on pages 16, 
20, 24, and 28; knowing that this document allows/requires development to closely resemble 
those renderings.  If the Commission likes those renderings, then there may be some comfort in 

trusting the learned professionals who have assisted the Port throughout this entire planning 
and design process.  After all, this is the Port’s first new urbanism project, but not the first code 

or regulations written by DPZ, who have surely learned and addressed any issues encountered 
over the last 30+ years of their experience. 
   

 



VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONSVISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS
DRAFTDRAFT August 19, 2021 August 19, 2021

	 Michael Mehaffy, Structura Naturalis, Inc 
	 Laurence Qamar, Qamar and Associates 



2	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



3	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

1. Introduction..........................................................................................................5
A.	 General
B.	 List of Regulations
C.	 Terminology
D.	 Authority
E.	 Administration 

2. Definitions.............................................................................................................9

3. Regulating Plan and Building Types..........................................................13

4. Urban Regulations............................................................................................31
A.	 General
B.	 Building Placement 
C.	 Building Configuration
D. 	 Building Use 
E. 	 Parking and Driveway Standards

5. Architecture Regulations...............................................................................35
A.	 General
B.	 Walls - Materials,
C.	 Walls - Configuration and Technique
D.	 Elements and Attachments - Materials
E.	 Elements and Attachments - Configuration and Technique   
F.	 Roofs and Eaves - Materials
G.	 Roofs and Eaves - Configuration and Technique 
H.	 Openings - Materials 
I.	 Openings - Configuration and Technique 
J. 	 Colors
K.	 Lighting
L. 	 Signs

6. Site and Landscape................................................................................45
A.	 General
B.	 Public Space - Materials 
C.	 Public Space - Configuration and Technique  
D.	 Gardens - Materials 
E.	 Gardens - Configuration and Technique 
F.	 Fences, Walls, Pavements - Materials 
G.	 Fences, Walls, Pavements - Configuration and Technique

7. Thoroughfare Regulations....................................................................49

8. Design Review Procedure.....................................................................51
A.	 General
B.	 Schematic Design Review
C.	 Design Review
D.	 Construction Documents Review 
E.	 Construction 
F.	 Change During Construction 
G.	 Design Review Procedures Checklist

VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS
Contents



4	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



5	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

INTRODUCTION                                                                                                

A. GENERAL 

The intent of the Vista Field Regulations is to produce a visual identity for the new community that 
emerges from the location, climate and history of its site.  The Regulations guide the implementation 
of a Master Plan that invites walking in a safe, comfortable and interesting public realm of shared 
spaces created by the streets and buildings of Vista Field.  

The goal of the Master Plan and Design Regulations is to enable a community of connectedness, with 
a visible welcoming of a diversity of people and activities. Workplace, retail and entertainment, and 
housing for a variety of ages and incomes, are all in close proximity, with appealing shared spaces and 
gathering places.  Buildings designed individually to contribute to a harmonious whole, reflect the 
desired balance of individual interest and shared benefit of a healthy society.  

Other goals include sustainability and climate resilience, in consideration of the health of natural sys-
tems and human well-being.  This is reflected in a master plan and building types intended to reduce 
dependence on non-renewable resources: a compact, mixed-use pedestrian friendly plan to reduce 
automobile dependence for daily activities, buildings scaled to allow cross-ventilation, and construc-
tion materials and methods specified for longevity in a dry climate. 

The economic goals include the balancing of investment and return in the creation of a thriving new 
neighborhood that benefits the community at large as well as the developer.  The context encourag-
es a modest beginning, allowing assessment of the initiating experience, with the expectation that 
the quality and predictability demanded by the guidelines will ensure growth in value with every 
new building that is added. 

The interface between the private properties and the public realm is a determining component of 
the community’s physical character.  Perceived in the streets and squares, and in views established for 
public benefit, this harmony in the public realm is the aim of the urban, architecture, landscape, and 
thoroughfare regulations that follow.

B. LIST OF REGULATIONS

The design regulations for Vista Field consist of six components to be used in conjunction with each 
other to implement the community vision:

Regulating Plan: a map showing the various lot types, Building Types, location and form of public 
spaces, including streets and squares.

Building Types: graphic design instructions for each Building Type, corresponding to the Urban Reg-

VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS



6	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

ulations.

Urban Regulations: text that regulates those aspects of buildings which affect the public realm, 
guiding building placement, configuration, uses, and parking.

Architectural Regulations: text that specifies the materials and configurations permitted for walls, 
roofs, openings, and other building elements, intended to produce visual compatibility among dis-
parate building types, and promote a unique identity for the community.  These regulations relate 
to the vernacular building traditions of the region, thus inheriting a suitable response to the climate.

Landscape Regulations: text that specifies materials and configuration of site improvements, sep-
arated into those pertaining to public areas and to private lots, reflecting the overall site goals of 
creating an ecosystem harmonious with the region, and developing a unified character for the new 
community with a forestation that is coordinated with the urban fabric. 

Thoroughfare Regulations: text that guides the quality of the pedestrian experience in the streets, 
alleys, and pedestrian passages than organize community mobility.

C. TERMINOLOGY

1.	 Addressing the quality and character of buildings, landscape and public spaces of Vista Field, 
the relatively high degree of specificity in these regulations will ensure that investments in 
homes and businesses are supported by consistent and predictable development.  The highest 
quality of design and construction is desired.  Poorly proportioned or executed details are unac-
ceptable.

2.	 Provisions of all the regulations are activated by “shall” when required; “should” when recom-
mended; and “may” when optional.

3.	 Properties and improvements are expected to conform to the Vista Field Design Regulations 
and the design intention of the Regulations and the Regulating Plan, and may take precedence 
over the “letter” of the Regulations.

4.	 Exceptions to these Regulations may be granted on the basis of architectural merit, site condi-
tions and/or other extenuating or unusual circumstance.  

5.	 The Town Architect (TA) may determine that a certain lot or portions thereof may be held to 
Principal Frontage (streets and public spaces) standards if it is highly and easily visible from the 
public realm, even if it does not meet the definition of Principal Frontage.

6.	 Where a material is specified, it is that material that is specified not others that may resemble 
it.  For example, “wood” means “wood”, not wood chips pressed and glued together, or recycled 
plastic melted and molded to resemble wood.  Materials other than those specified in this docu-
ment may be approved by the TA.  

7.	 Where previously approved materials have since been prohibited or are no longer permitted, 
the previously approved material may be used for repairs.



7	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

D. AUTHORITY

For the Vista Field development, the Design Regulating shall take precedence over other typical 
standards. In matters of health and safety,  the City of Kennewick, State of Washington and national 
regulations shall take precedence.  

The City of Kennewick, WA Code of Ordinances Mixed-Use Design Standards District that includes 
standards for street frontage, blocks, site design, and building design, shall prevail in case of differ-
ence. These Urban and Architectural Standards may be legally binding by contract with the Vista 
Field Community Association as a condition of the purchase of property within the community.

E. ADMINISTRATION

The Vista Field Town Architect (TA) shall administer these regulations, and all the approvals required 
by these regulations.  Exceptions to these guidelines may be approved by the Town Architect..   
Each exception should be considered unique and shall not set a precedent for future exceptions.  A 
specific description of each deviation shall be clearly recorded in writing prior to the start of con-
struction.  

A sampling of forms to assist in administration may be found in the Design Review Procedure at the 
end of this document. 



8	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



9	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

2. DEFINITIONS                                                                                               

All capitalized words in the Design Regulations shall be interpreted as defined below.

Alley: a thoroughfare, or access easement, designated to be a secondary means of vehicular access 
to the rear or side of properties; an Alley may connect to a vehicular driveway located to the rear of 
lots providing access to outbuildings, service areas and parking, and may contain utility easements.

Awning: a fixed or movable shading structure, cantilevered or otherwise entirely supported from a 
building, used to protect outdoor spaces from sun, rain, and other natural conditions. Awnings are 
typically used to cover outdoor seating for restaurants and cafes.

Blade Sign: a sign made from rigid material mounted perpendicular to a building wall with one 
side attached or supported by a device extending from a building wall.

Block: the aggregate of private lots, passages, and rear alleys, circumscribed by thoroughfares. 

Build-to Line: a line on the Regulating Plan at which the building Facade is required to be placed.

Building Height: the vertical extent of a building measured in feet or stories. Building Height shall 
be measured from the sidewalk or if there is no sidewalk from the street pavement at the front of 
the building, at the centerline of the lot width.   Building Height shall be measured to the highest 
point of the roof for flat roofs; to the midpoint between the eaves and the highest point of the roof 
for pitched roofs. 

Building Type: the categorization of a building according to its location on the master plan and its 
relationship to public space such as the street it faces.

Civic: the term defining organizations dedicated primarily to community benefit through the arts, 
culture, education, recreation, government, transport, and municipal parking.

Civic Building: a building operated by an organizations dedicated to arts, culture, education, recre-
ation, government, transit, and municipal parking, or other community benefit public use.

Civic Space: an outdoor area dedicated for public use and operated by a Civic organization or by 
the Vista Field Property Owners Association.

Configuration: the form of a building or a building component based on its relation to the overall 
building and adjacent public space.

Disposition: the placement of a building on its lot. 

Elevation: an exterior wall of a building not facing a Frontage. See: Facade.

Floor Elevation: the height of a floor level.

Encroachment: any building element that breaks the plane of a vertical or horizontal regulatory 
limit, extending into a setback, or into the public frontage.

Exception: a ruling that would permit a practice that is not consistent with a specific provision of 
this Code, but that is justified by its intent.



10	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

Facade: the exterior wall of a building facing a Frontage Line. See Elevation.

Flag Lane: an auto accessway shared by two to six residential lots.

Frontage: the area between a building facade and the vehicular lanes, inclusive of its built and 
planted components. Frontage is divided into Private Frontage and Public Frontage which are de-
fined below.

Frontage Line: a lot line bordering a public frontage. Facades facing frontage lines define the pub-
lic realm and are therefore more regulated than the elevations facing other lot lines.  Lots at inter-
sections have two Frontage Lines.

Lot: a parcel of land accommodating a building or buildings of unified design. 

Lot Coverage: the percentage of Lot area that may be covered by building.

Lot Line: the boundary that legally and geometrically demarcates a Lot.  

Lot Width: the length of the principal Frontage Line of a Lot.

Natural Preserve: Land reserved permanently to be without building.

Outbuilding: an accessory building, usually located toward the rear or the front of the same Lot as 
a Principal Building; connected to or separated from the Principal Building.

Parking Lot or Area: A designated space for auto access and arrival, with or without access to a ga-
rage, usually detailed as a pedestrian space with garden landscaping and pavement.

Pedestrian Passage: a right-of-way with pedestrian access only.

Porch: An exterior roofed space attached to a Principal Building.

Principal Building: the main building on a lot, usually located to face and be entered from a street.

Principal Frontage: the Private Frontage designated to bear the address and principal entrance to 
the building, and the measure of minimum lot width. 

Private Frontage: the privately held layer between the Frontage Line and the Principal Building 
Facade.

Public Frontage: the area between the pavement of the vehicular lanes and the Frontage Line.

Regulating Plan: a map or set of maps that shows general areas of Building Type zones, Civic zones, 
thoroughfares, special districts if any, and special requirements if any, of areas subject to, or poten-
tially subject to, regulation by the Guidelines.

Setback: the area of a lot measured from the Lot Line to a building Facade or Elevation that is main-
tained clear of permanent structures, with the exception of Encroachments. 



11	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

Shared Driveway: see Flag Lane.

Shopfront: that part of a building that is designed for potential retail use.

Sidewalk: the paved or graveled section of the public frontage dedicated exclusively to pedestrian 
activity. 

Story: a habitable level within a building, excluding an attic or raised basement.  

Streetscreen: a freestanding wall built along the Frontage Line, or coplanar with the Facade. 

Terminated Vista: a location visible at the axial conclusion of a street or other public space.

Turning Radius: the curved edge of a thoroughfare at an intersection, measured at the inside edge 
of the vehicular tracking. The smaller the turning radius, the smaller the pedestrian crossing dis-
tance and the more slowly the vehicle is forced to make the turn. 



12	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



13	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

3. REGULATING PLAN AND BUILDING TYPES                                                                              

Vista Field Phase One has four Building Types: 

Type I: Residential: two stories, single family houses, townhouses, cottage courts, and small apartment 
houses.

Type II: Live Work:  two to three stories, with individual identity, business space at ground level, and resi-
dential use behind and above. 

Type III: Mixed Use:  two to three stories, with restaurant, retail, and service space below, and commer-
cial or residential uses above.

Type IV: Main Street:  one to two stories, welcoming a variety of business and residential uses.

0 50 100 200 feet

ScalePhase 1 Boundary
Build-To-Line
Terminated Vistas

Regulating Plan
Vista Field Phase 1

(I) (III)

(III)

(III)

(IV)

(II)

(II)

(I)



14	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

Building Types  III  &  IV

LOT TYPE DIAGRAMS
Building Types  I & II

Street

Street

Pedestrian Passage

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ro
nt

ag
e

Pr
iv

at
e 

Fr
on

ta
ge

Alley

Front Setback

Fr
on

t 
Se

tb
ac

k

R
ea

r 
Se

tb
ac

k
Interior Side Setback

Interior Side Setback

Street

Street

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ro
nt

ag
e

Pr
iv

at
e 

Fr
on

ta
ge

Parking Lot

Fr
on

t 
Se

tb
ac

k

Side Setback

R
ea

r 
Se

tb
ac

k

Interior Side Setback



15	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE I: RESIDENTIAL

Type I Residential allows single family houses, townhouses, cottage courts and small apartment 
buildings  on a single platted lot with alley-accessed parking.   

Use:			   Residential

Lot width: 			   20’ minimum, 100’ maximum

Lot depth:				    50’ minimum, 100’ maximum

Lot area:				    1,000 sf minimum, 5,000 sf maximum

Building setbacks:	 Front:	 Build-to Line at 8’, 50% of Lot width minimum
	Sides:		  0’ interior side, and 5’ minimum end unit side, including 

at pedestrian passage
	 Rear:	 5’ minimum

Building height:				   35’ maximum (3 stories above basement level)
					     Basement shall not extend above street elevation. 

Parking:				    Alley access, garage or parking pad
					       
Additional Regulations: 

1.	 Build-to Lines for individual buildings shall be according to the Regulating Plan. 
2.	 Porches, stoops, and lightwells for basement windows may encroach into front setback, and 

end unit side setback, up to 50%. Balconies and bay windows may encroach into the front, end 
unit side, and rear setback up to 50%.

3.	 Walls and fences shall be required on internal side property lines, shall not encroach on front 
and rear setbacks, and shall be a maximum height of 6’.  



16	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

20’ - 24’

TYPE I

A
20’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

20’ - 24’

TYPE I

B
20’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

25’ - 28’

TYPE I

C
25’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

30’ - 36’

TYPE I

D
30’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

30’ - 34’

TYPE I

E
30’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

15’ - 18’

TYPE I

F
35’  lot width min.

5’ side setback min. 
both sides

20’ - 22’

TYPE I

G
35’  lot width min.

5’ side setback min. 
both sides

14’ - 16’

TYPE I

H
35’  lot width min.

5’ side setback min. 
both sides

BUILDING TYPE I: RESIDENTIAL
Illustrative Elevations



17	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

Illustrative Plan
BUILDING TYPE I: RESIDENTIAL



18	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



19	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE II: LIVE WORK

Type II Live-Work Building allows residential and commercial uses of a small scale on a single plat-
ted lot, with alley-accessed parking. This type serves as a transitional type between commercial and 
residential uses. It is intended to facilitate working at home, and to encourage incubation of new 
businesses.   

Use:			   Residential, commercial

Lot width: 			   25’ minimum, 50’ maximum

Lot depth:				    50’ minimum, 100’ maximum

Lot area:				    1,250’ sf minimum, 5,000’ sf maximum

Building setbacks:	 Front:		  Build-to Line at 8’, 50% minimum of Lot width
				    Sides:		  0’ interior side, and 5’ minimum end unit side, including at 

pedestrian passage 
			   Rear:			  5’ minimum

Building height:				   35’ maximum (3 stories above basement level)
					     Basement shall not extend above street elevation

Parking:				    Alley access, garage or parking pad			
										        
Additional Regulations: 

1.	 Build-to Lines for individual buildings shall be according to the Regulating Plan. 
2.	 Porches, stoops, and light wells for basement windows may encroach into front setback and 

end unit side setback, up to 50%. Balconies and bay windows may encroach into the front, end 
unit side, and rear setback up to 50%.

3.	 Walls and fences shall be required on side internal property lines, shall not encroach on front 
and rear setbacks, and shall be maximum height of 6’. 



20	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

20’ - 24’

TYPE II

A
30’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

20’ - 25’

TYPE II

B
25’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

20’ - 25’

TYPE II

C
25’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

TYPE II

D

24’ - 28’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

TYPE II

E

22’ - 24’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

TYPE II

F

24’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

TYPE II

G

24’

40’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

TYPE II

H

30’ - 36’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

BUILDING TYPE II: LIVE WORK
Illustrative Elevations



21	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE II: LIVE WORK
Illustrative Plans



22	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



23	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE III: MIXED USE 

Type III Mixed Use allows a flexible arrangement of commercial and residential uses with alley access 
or shared lot parking.   

Use:			   Retail, office, services, and residential 

Lot width: 			   20’ minimum, 150’ maximum

Lot depth:				    50’ minimum, 10,000’ maximum

Lot area:				    1,000’ sf minimum, 15,000’ sf maximum

Building setbacks:	 Front:		  0’ or Build-to Line at 8’ according to Regulating Plan	
			   Sides:		  0’ 
			   Rear:			  5’ minimum

Building height:				   45’ maximum (2 stories minimum and 3 stories maximum 
above basement level

					     Minimum first floor finished height 14’
					     Basement shall not extend above sidewalk elevation

Parking:				    Rear access shared parking lot as per Regulating Plan.  
					   
Additional Regulations: 

1.	 Adjacent to residential  Type I, a ground floor residential use with at-grade ADA level entry is 
acceptable. 

2.	 Build-to Lines for individual buildings shall be according to the Regulating Plan. 

3.	 Balconies and bay windows may encroach into the front, side, and rear setback up to 50%.

4.	 Retractable awnings may encroach into setbacks and beyond front property line, by approval of 
the TA. 



24	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE III: MIXED USE
Illustrative Elevations

30’ - 36’

TYPE III

A
30’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

40’

TYPE III

B
40’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

35’ - 38’

TYPE III

C
45’  lot width min.

5’ side setback min.

TYPE III

D

40’

40’  lot width min.
0’ side setback min.

TYPE III

E

40’

40’  lot width min.
0’ side setback min.



25	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE III: MIXED USE
Illustrative Plan



26	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



27	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE IV: MAIN STREET

Type IV Main Street allows retail use at ground level with or without upper story commercial and 
residential uses in a single structure, with alley access or shared lot parking.   

Use:			   First floor retail, office and services
				    Second floor office, services, and residential  

Lot width: 			   20’ minimum, 100’ maximum

Lot depth:				    50’ minimum, 100’ maximum

Lot area:				    1,000’ sf minimum, 10,000’ sf maximum

Building setbacks:	 Front:		  0’ or Build-to Line at 8’ according to Regulating Plan
			   Sides:		  0’ 
			   Rear:			  5’ minimum

Building height:				   35’ maximum (2 stories above basement level)
					     Minimum first floor finished height 14’
					     Basement shall not extend above sidewalk elevation. 

Parking:				    Rear access shared parking lot as per Regulating Plan
			 
		
Additional Regulations: 

1.	 Adjacent to residential  Type I, a ground floor residential use with at-grade ADA level entry is 
acceptable. 

2.	 Build-to Lines for individual buildings shall be according to the Regulating Plan-. 

3.	 Balconies and bay windows may encroach into the front, side, and rear setback up to 50%.

4.	 Retractable awnings may encroach into setbacks and beyond front property line, by approval of 
the TA. 



28	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE IV: MAIN STREET
Illustrative Elevations

40’

TYPE IV

A
40’  lot width min.

0’ side setback

40’ - 56’

TYPE IV

B
40’  lot width min.

5’ side setback min.

20’ - 30’

TYPE IV

C
20’  lot width min.

0’ side setback min.

TYPE IV

D

20’ - 32’

20’  lot width min.
0’ side setback

TYPE IV

E

30’ - 36’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback min.

TYPE IV

F

30’ - 36’

30’  lot width min.
0’ side setback min.



29	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

BUILDING TYPE IV: MAIN STREET
Illustrative Plans



30	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



31	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

4. URBAN REGULATIONS                                                                             

A. GENERAL 

The Urban Regulations apply to all Building Types, unless otherwise stated below, and are coordi-
nated with the requirements of the specific Building Types.  The Urban Regulations are organized by 
these categories:

A.	 General 
B.	 Building Placement
C.	 Building Configuration
D.	 Building Use
E.	 Parking and Driveway Standards

B. BUILDING PLACEMENT 

1.	 Platted lots shall be dimensioned according to Building Types.

2.	 Civic Buildings are not regulated, but shall develop their site plans in conjunction with the TA.  

3.	 Buildings and all building elements shall be placed in relation to their Lot lines, Setbacks, Build-
to Lines,  and Frontage Lines according to the Regulating Plan and the Building Types.  

4.	 Lot lines that coincide with a right-of-way or public space are designated Frontage Lines.

5.	 In the case of adjacent Building Type difference, Setbacks may be adjusted by approval of TA. 

6.	 Setbacks shall be measured perpendicular to the property line of the Lot; at curved property 
lines (as at a street), the measure shall be taken perpendicular to the tangent at the centerline of 
the Lot.

7.	 One Principal Building, and in certain Types, one Outbuilding or multiple buildings, may be built 
on each lot as shown in Building Types.  

8.	 Buildings shall be placed on Lots with attention to view corridors and Terminated Vistas of the 
Master Plan.

9.	 Facades shall be built parallel to the Principal Frontage Line of a straight line and parallel to the 
chord if broken or curved. Elevations may deviate from the trajectory of Lot Lines.

10.	 Buildings shall have their principal pedestrian entrances on a Frontage Line. 

11.	 Lots facing two streets shall be considered to have two Frontages, in regard to Setbacks, attach-
ments, and other details, for the purposes of these Regulations.  Thus, corner buildings have 
two fronts, two Facades, one back, and one side.

12.	 Lots with Alley or Flag Lane access shall restrict auto access to the Alley or Flag Lane, and shall 
not have auto access from adjacent streets.

13.	 A building Façade shall be designed to recognize its focus as a Terminated Vista.  Driveways and 
service areas shall not be permitted at Vista Terminations. 



32	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

14.	 Lots with Pedestrian Passage access only shall treat the Passage side as the Lot Frontage.

15.	 Streetscreens shall be aligned with the building Façade.

16.	 Alleys shall be screened from street view by walls or landscape extending from buildings along 
the Frontage. When alleys intersect at other than 90 degrees, buildings shall align, to avoid ex-
posing to the street the parking or garage entry behind an extended building. 

17.	 Lots with Alley access shall provide a space for pedestrians to pass from the Building to the Alley 
without having to go through the garage

18.	 Encroachments into Setbacks and beyond the Build-to Line shall be according to Building 
Types.

19.	 All outdoor storage, trash containers, electrical, plumbing, mechanical and communications 
equipment, tanks, generators, utility meters, clotheslines, satellite dishes, play equipment, hot 
tubs, permanent grilles, firewood (except on porches), and the like shall be permitted only be-
hind the front façade, at enclosed rear and side yards and shall conform to required Setbacks; 
or on roofs concealed by parapet walls; and shall be concealed from view from Frontages and 
adjacent yards.  Trash containers shall be enclosed to prevent animal access.

20.	 Loading docks and service areas shall be concealed from street and sidewalk views.  When Alley 
or rear parking lot access is not available, service areas at a frontage concealed from public view 
by a Street Screen may be permitted by approval of TA.

21.	 Trash containers in Types III and IV shall be concealed from street view, located within a perma-
nent enclosure, and accessed from an Alley or rear parking lot. 

22.	 Basketball hoops, croquet courts, and gardens (including vegetable gardens) may be permitted 
in front yards by approval of TA.

23.	 The following outbuildings and landscape constructions may be permitted by approval of TA, 
and shall adhere to the Vista Field Regulations:  garages, workshops, guest houses, artisan stu-
dios, garden pavilions, greenhouses, storage sheds, gazebos, trellises, swimming pools and pool 
houses. Swimming pools and hot tubs shall maintain a low profile and shall be screened from 
surrounding lots and street views.

C. BUILDING CONFIGURATION 

1.	 Each Building shall have a clearly indicated front entry that is visible and accessible from a street 
or Flag Lane.

2.	 Building rooflines shall be simple, with a maximum of two gables per building facing the street, 
and a maximum of six exterior corners,  exclusive of attachments facing the street.

3.	 Building Heights shall be as shown in Building Types.  

4.	 Chimneys, stairwells, trellises, and other portions of a structure up to 215 sf in area, may be al-
lowed to exceed maximum building height by an additional story.



33	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

5.	 Porches shall be a minimum of 7’ deep.

6.	 Balconies that cantilever shall be maximum 3’ deep.

7.	 Mechanical equipment on a roof shall be enclosed by a parapet of the minimum height neces-
sary to conceal it from any public view. 

8.	 All Building and deck crawl spaces shall be enclosed and screened from public view. 

D. BUILDING USE 

1.	 Buildings shall conform to the uses described in Building Types.  Uses that do not conform to 
the requirements shall require approval of TA.

2.	 Temporary exterior commercial uses, seating, dining and displays in shopfront setbacks may be 
permitted by approval of TA. 

E. PARKING AND DRIVEWAY STANDARDS

1.	 Required off-street parking placement shall be according to Building Type. 

2.	 Required parking quantities shall be as per Kennewick, WA Code of Ordinances Off-Street Park-
ing Regulations.

3.	 Parking shall be accessed by Alley or in a Parking Lot at the rear of a Lot, and may be unshel-
tered or in a garage or carport. 

4.	 Parking lots shall be masked from the Frontage by a Liner Building or Street Screen.

5.	 Where a driveway crosses a sidewalk, any elevation change or slope shall occur within the Lot to 
maintain a sidewalk without uneven slopes. 

6.	 Shared parking lots shall have a minimum of one bicycle rack space for every 20 vehicular park-
ing spaces.



34	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



35	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

5. ARCHITECTURE REGULATIONS 

A. GENERAL 

1.	 The Architecture Regulations are organized by these categories: 

A.	 General
B.	 Walls - Materials
C.	 Walls - Configuration and Technique 
D. 	 Elements and Attachments - Materials
E.	 Elements and Attachments - Configuration and Technique   
F.	 Roofs and Eaves - Materials
G.	 Roofs and Eaves - Configuration and Technique
H.	 Openings - Materials
I. 	 Openings - Configuration and Technique 
J. 	 Colors
K.	 Lighting
L. 	 Signs 

2.	 The goal of the Architecture Regulations is the achievement of a unique architectural identity 
for Vista Field through a balance of uniformity and variety. A suitable response to the climate 
and geography can be learned from the vernacular traditions. Inspiration and lessons can be 
taken from historical regional buildings, including High Desert, Agrarian Vernacular, Bunga-
low and Craftsman, Spanish Revival, Neo-Classical and Mission styles.  Historical styles when 
employed should strive to be exemplary of the origins.  The use of limited materials, focused 
on those locally sourced, and a defined color palette, provide a background of uniformity for 
variations in form.  Constraints on form seek to produce building design of the highest quality, 
avoiding clichés and kitsch, in support of the urban and environmental goals and community 
identity.

3.	 All materials shall be subject to approval by TA. 

4.	 All dimensions may be considered nominal.

5.	 Materials and their details and applications for the individual units or other portions of a multi-
unit building shall be consistent.

B. WALLS – MATERIALS

1.	 Foundation and pier materials shall be concrete, stone or brick.  Block with light coating of stuc-
co for exposed foundation walls may be permitted by approval of TA.

2.	 Wall materials and columns above foundation walls and piers shall be stone, concrete, stucco, 
tile, brick, metal, cementitious boarding, wood, and composition wood.  

3.	 Shingles shall be smooth cut sawn cedar,  4” to 6” to the weather, sealed with oil or stain only.  
Coarse variety may be permitted by approval of TA.  Single panels are prohibited.



36	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

4.	 Horizontal lap and ship lap siding shall be: smooth face clear redwood or western red cedar, 
4” to 6” to the weather, painted or sealed and stained; or composition siding smooth side only, 
Hardie, Hardie Artisan or Boral, 4 to 6” to the weather, painted or prefinished.  

5.	 Board and batten shall be clear redwood, western red cedar, or composition panel smooth face 
only, with 2x3 battens, 16” o.c. maximum, painted or sealed and stained.  Application shall initi-
ate batten at the centerline of each wall plane.

6.	 Brick shall be laid in a horizontal running bond pattern with mortar joints no greater than 3/8“, 
shall have minimal color variation, and shall not be painted.

7.	 Stone shall be natural rock, should be of the region, and shall be individual stones 8” minimum 
average; laid dry-stack or mortared, uniform in style ranging from coursed ashlar to uncoursed 
rubble; and shall appear to be weight bearing and not applied.

8.	 Concrete shall be architectural cast-in-place or board form.

9.	 Metal shall be brass, bronze, wrought iron, galvanized, stainless or enameled steel or ma-
rine-grade aluminum, and shall be permitted only by approval of TA.

10.	 Nails, screws, fasteners, hinges exposed to the elements shall be galvanized or stainless steel.

11.	 Mailboxes, newspaper boxes, flower boxes, lettering and numbering shall not be plastic or vinyl.

C. WALLS – CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE

1.	 All Elevations of a single building shall maintain a uniform level of quality in materials and de-
tailing. 

2.	 Facades should be designed to emulate traditional width to height proportions such as the 
golden section, square and double square; and with tri-partite assemblies: base, middle, and 
top; and center and edges.  

3.	 Wall cladding shall be of two materials maximum; and shall be in two configurations of the ma-
terial maximum.

4.	 Materials changes shall be along a horizontal line and not along a vertical or diagonal line, typ-
ically at a floor line, gable or water-table, and shall place the heavier material below the lighter, 
expressing a continuous transfer of building loads from the roof to the foundation.  Founda-
tions shall appear to carry the weight of the building.  

5.	 Decorative shingles may be permitted by approval of TA.

6.	 Trim such as corner boards, framing for openings and fascia, shall be no less than 1 1/4”.

7.	 Wood posts shall be 6” minimum in width or depth, chamfered at the corners, and with spacing 
of traditional proportions.



37	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

8.	 Siding spacing shall butt into corner boards and openings trim.  Siding shall not extend in front 
of trim.  

9.	 Façade stone or brick shall return onto the adjacent side wall 8” to 12”.

10.	 Foundation piers of masonry or concrete shall be 12” in width and 8” in depth minimum. Foun-
dation walls and piers shall be exposed a maximum of 8”.  Above 8” an architectural finish shall 
be required.  Exposed crawlspace shall be a maximum 18” above grade.  

11.	 Porch openings shall be vertical in proportion.

12.	 Porch columns shall be brought to grade as masonry piers or masonry foundation walls. Piers 
shall have openings framed and filled with wood or brick lattice.  Wood skirts covering piers are 
prohibited.

13.	 Stone or pre-cast lintels shall extend horizontally beyond the opening spanned a dimension 
equal to the height of the lintel.  Brick soldier lintels shall extend a minimum of one brick be-
yond the opening.

14.	 Lintels and sills should generally align to create a harmonious facade. When used, window sills 
should receive more emphasis than lintels, since the lintel already casts a shadow line. The win-
dow sill should extend beyond the window opening and surrounding trim a maximum of 2” and 
shall be detailed with a drip to prevent wall staining. 

15.	 Arches shall be permitted only in masonry or stucco wall surfaces. Keystones shall be centered 
on the arch and have sides radial to the arch.

16.	 Metal columns shall be steel and shall be round in section and of a minimum 6” diameter.

D. ELEMENTS AND ATTACHMENTS – MATERIALS

1.	 Bay windows, porches and balconies shall be made of the wall materials, or they may be made 
of wood, painted or sealed and stained to match the building wall materials; or metal finished 
to match other metal of the building including windows and doors.

2.	 Awnings shall be made of structural building materials such as metal, wood, glass or concrete, 
and shall have visible architectural support, such as brackets, integral to the awning design. 
Awnings made of canvas or synthetic woven material resembling canvas may be permitted by 
approval of TA.

3.	 Glazing shall be clear glass.  Reflective glass is prohibited.  Frosted, etched, and other decorative 
glass may be permitted by approval of TA.

4.	 Porch and deck floors shall be wood or concrete; brick, stone and composite decking may be 
allowed by approval of TA.



38	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

5.	 Front entrance porch steps and stoops shall be stone, brick or concrete,  and shall be faced on 
all exposed sides with stone, brick or concrete.  Secondary porch steps and stoops may be per-
mitted in wood or composite wood by approval of TA.  

6.	 Balcony, porch, deck and stair railings shall be of a single material in wood or composite simu-
lated wood.  Metal railings may be permitted by approval of TA.

7.	 Pergolas and trellises shall be made of wood, metal or vinyl; trellis wire shall be stainless steel 
held by 6” stand-offs.

8.	 Window air-conditioners are prohibited. Wall air-conditioners facing an alley or parking lot may 
be allowed by approval of the TA.

E. ELEMENTS AND ATTACHMENTS - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE

1.	 Awnings shall be sloping rectangles with a free-hanging drip edge, without side or bottom 
soffit panels, and shall be of a solid color to match the wall color or trim or a dark accent color.  
Half-dome and plastic awnings are prohibited. 

2.	 Awnings for Types III and IV shall be a minimum of 36 inches wide, shall have a maximum slope 
of 1:3 from the building to the edge, shall be at height minimum 9’ above the pedestrian, and 
shall not extend closer than two feet to the edge of the adjacent street curb. All awnings shall 
be integral to the overall design of the storefront and shall respect vertical column and window 
spacing. Awnings shall be at least nine feet high from the adjacent sidewalk.

3.	 Bay windows shall cantilever 2 feet maximum, and shall be supported by knee-braces, or other 
architectural support.  Bay windows may be supported by foundation walls.

4.	 Balconies shall cantilever 3 feet maximum, and shall be supported with brackets or other archi-
tectural support.

5.	 Chimneys shall have a foundation at grade, and for height shall replicate wood-burning stan-
dards.  Chimney top flues shall be metal or tile.  Horizontal flues may be permitted by approval 
of the TA, and shall not face a street or other public space frontage.  Metal flues shall be painted 
the color of the roof, flat black or left natural.

6.	 Wood railings shall be clear cedar, 2x2 minimum pickets.  Railings shall have top and bottom 
rails; top rails shall be eased for handling comfort and bottom rails shall have a vertical section.  
Railings 1x4 minimum flat face to façade with ½” gaps maximum may be permitted by approval 
of TA.  Top and bottom rails shall be centered on the pickets.

7.	 Metal railings may be permitted by approval of TA.

8.	 Flagpoles less than 6’ long may be mounted at an angle to porch columns or posts and building 
walls.



39	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

F. ROOFS AND EAVES - MATERIALS

1.	 Pitched roofs cladding shall be slate, terra cotta tile, metal or asphalt shingles. 

2.	 Metal roof cladding shall be prefinished standing seam, galvalume or zincalume; pre-finished 
corrugated; or unfinished copper; with roof attachments to match main roof.

3.	 Asphalt shingles shall be multi-ply architectural in a single color. 

4.	 Flat roof surfaces may be reflective roofing, wood decked, and concrete, ceramic or terra cotta 
tiled.

5.	 Green (vegetated) roofs may be permitted by approval of TA.

6.	 Gutters and downspouts shall be copper, steel or anodized/natural finish aluminum.  Copper-an-
odized aluminum is prohibited.

7.	 Flashing shall be copper, lead or anodized aluminum.

8.	 Copper roofs, flashing, gutters and downspouts shall be allowed to age naturally and shall not be 
painted or sealed.

9.	 Roof penetrations such as vents, attic ventilators, turbines, and flues, shall be painted to match 
the color of the roof or flat black, except those made of metal may be left natural.

10.	 Splash blocks shall be stone, brick, concrete or gravel.

G. ROOFS AND EAVES - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE

1.	 Roofs shall be simple and symmetrically gabled or hipped, or flat. Two roof types maximum per 
building, one primary and one secondary, shall be the allowed. 

2.	 Primary roofs shall be gable end or hip.  Primary single shed roofs (roofs that pitch in one direc-
tion) are prohibited.

3.	 Secondary roofs shall be hip, gabled; or flat with a parapet to conceal slopes and equipment. 

4.	 Primary roof pitch shall be between 6:12 and 14:12. Secondary roof pitch may be shallower by 
approval of TA.

5.	 Roof slope breaks may be permitted at 25% maximum of overall width of roof by approval of 
TA.

6.	 Shed roofs shall be permitted when the ridge is attached to an exterior wall of a building and 
shall have a pitch between 2:12 and 4:12.



40	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

7.	 Eaves shall cantilever 2 feet maximum.  Gable end eaves shall cantilever 2 ½ feet maximum. 

8.	 Exposed soffits shall have rafter tails maximum 2x6, with 1x4 or 1x6 tongue-in-groove, or ACX 
plywood. Gable end rake rafters and fascia shall be minimum 2x8.  

9.	 Enclosed soffits shall be 1x4 tongue-in-groove, skip sheathing with a ½” gap, or stucco.

10.	 Brackets shall be 4x6 vertical, 6x6 horizontal, 4x6 strut.

11.	 Gutters shall be ½ round, J-style, or box and shall be the same profile on any one building.

12.	 Downspouts shall be round or square on a stand-off pin and shall be placed by approval of TA.  
Rain chains and barrels may be permitted by approval of TA.  In the absence of gutters, gravel 
shall be placed at the dripline.

13.	 Dormers shall be habitable, roofed with a symmetrical gable, hip, or shed, and placed minimum 
3’ from side building walls.

14.	 Skylights shall be flat in profile. Skylights, vent stacks and other roof applications and protru-
sions shall be placed on roofs facing away from streets.

15.	 Solar tiles and solar panels may be permitted by approval of TA, and shall be integrated into the 
surface of the roof and shall not expose an independent structure.  Roofs should be designed to 
accommodate panels; panels applied to an unrelated roof design shall be prohibited as shall be 
stair-stepping rectangular patterns.

16.	 Turbines may be permitted by approval of TA.

17.	 Flat roofs shall be surrounded by a parapet wall tall enough to conceal any roof-top equipment, 
and no less than 1’ above the roof deck. The parapet may be interrupted by drainage scuppers.

H. OPENINGS - MATERIALS

1.	 Windows shall be made of wood, aluminum clad wood, fiberglass, vinyl, Westeck true-divided 
grid vinyl, or steel sash.

2.	 Glass shall be clear and free of color.  Frosted, etched, tinted or other decorative glass and glass 
blocks may be permitted by approval of TA, except at street frontages where they may be ap-
plied in clerestories only.  Reflective or dark glass is prohibited.

3.	 Shutters shall be made of wood, painted or sealed and stained, Boral, metal, or vinyl. 

4.	 Doors shall be made of wood, aluminum-clad wood, wood-veneered fiberglass, glass panel, or 
steel.  

5.	 Screens for windows and doors shall be made of bronze, aluminum, dark colored fiberglass or 
black vinyl.



41	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

6.	 Garage doors shall be made of wood, composite wood, steel or wood-veneered fiberglass, and 
may have glass or framed panels.

7.	 Type III and Type IV storefronts shall be made of wood, brick, composite board, stone, custom 
metal work or steel frame and clear glass.  Painted surfaces shall be white or a dark color glossy 
painted finish.  Masonry and anodized aluminum storefronts may be permitted by approval of 
TA.  

I. OPENINGS - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE

1.	 Windows and doors facing frontages, streets, and public spaces shall be located within wall 
sections such that wall thickness is perceived from the exterior of the building.  Flush mounted 
windows and doors are prohibited.  

2.	 A minimum of 30% of the total Façade area shall be made of glass windows and doors.

3.	 Total fenestration on the first floor for Types III and IV shall be a minimum of 70% of the first 
floor facade area and shall have a continuous kickplate 12 – 36” above the sidewalk.  Storefronts 
shall be designed as a unified composition of doors, windows, bulkheads, transoms, signage, 
awnings, lighting and other details.

4.	 Windows shall be square or vertical in proportion, such as 1:1.5, golden section, double square, 
triple square.  Transoms may be horizontal.  Windows may be circular, semi-circular, oval, hex-
agonal or octagonal in shape, but only one such window may be placed on a façade.  Windows 
may be quarter-circular in shape when paired in a gable end.

5.	 Windows may be sub-divided into panes that shall be square or vertical in proportion, with 
similar proportions throughout the building.  Muntins shall be true-divided light, or three-part 
simulated divided lite, and shall match the color of the exterior sash.  Muntins shall not be snap-
ons.

6.	 Windows shall be operable, single-hung, double-hung, casement, awning or fixed.  Sliding win-
dows are prohibited.

7.	 Two or more windows in the same rough opening on a facade shall be separated by a minimum 
4” wide post.

8.	 Windows facing streets shall be no closer than 2’ to the corners of the building, except in Types 
III and IV.

9.	 Single panes of glass shall be in area a maximum 20 square feet, except in Types III and IV.

10.	 Window screens, if provided, shall be full view screens. Half view screens may be permitted by 
approval of TA.  Window screens shall be finished to match the window they serve or the trim 
around it.

11.	 Porch screens may be allowed and shall be framed to reflect column spacing proportions.



42	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

12.	 Shutters, if provided, shall be applied to all of the typical windows on a Façade or elevation; 
shall be shaped and sized to the opening they serve; shall match the color of the wall or the 
building trim; shall be fully functional except with approval of TA.  If fixed, shutters shall be 
mounted as if hinged to the window sash.

13.	 Doors facing Frontages shall be made of visible boarding or stiles with glass panels or recessed 
or raised panels, half-lite, full-lite, or three-quarter lite, that express construction technique.  
Door lites that are arches, rounds, fans or ovals are prohibited.  Flush doors with applied trim are 
prohibited. 

14.	 Type III and IV storefront entrance doors shall be recessed to allow the door to swing out with-
out obstructing pedestrian flow on the sidewalk.  Each tenant space shall have at least one 
three-foot wide door at the main entry.  Storefront entrances shall be encouraged at building 
corners. Where appropriate, folding doors and windows that allow the activity of the business 
to open adjacent to and onto the public sidewalk may be installed for restaurants and food ser-
vices.  Rear and side doors and windows facing service alleys and parking lots shall be encour-
aged, but not required.

15.	 Double doors shall not exceed 5’-6” in overall width except where intermediate 4” minimum 
posts are provided.

16.	 Sliding glass doors shall not be permitted on facades facing streets.

17.	 Screen doors, if provided, shall be full view or three quarter view, and may have a center cross 
rail finished to match the screen door.  Screen doors shall be finished to match the door they 
serve or the trim around it.

18.	 Garage doors shall be configured as a sectional overhead or hinged carriage door, and should 
be an individual door for each parking space.

19.	 Garage doors facing an alley or a flag lane may be maximum 18’ for double width, and may be 
permitted taller than 8’ in height by approval of TA.

20.	 Security doors and windows may be permitted by approval of TA.  For residences these shall be 
designed as decorative window grills and doorway gates.  For storefronts, these shall be interior 
links or grills that are completely hidden from view when not in use.  Solid metal gates or roll-
down shutters shall not be permitted.

J. COLORS

1.	 Colors shall be selected  from the Benjamin Moore Historic Colors Palette or equivalent with the 
addition of pure white and shall be approved by TA.

2.	 Residential buildings shall be a maximum two colors, including walls, doors, windows, and trim.  
Trim shall be one color only.  Window sashes and entrance doors may be a third color.

3.	 Wall colors shall be lighter than the trim or attachments and other elements, except white trim 
is permitted. Contrasting trim other than white shall be avoided.

4.	 Awnings may have a maximum of two colors by approval of TA.



43	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

K. LIGHTING

1.	 Lighting shall adhere to Dark Sky Friendly standards. Path and area lighting shall have shields to 
direct light to ground area of use.

2.	 All exterior lighting, including lampposts, lighting on building walls, wall sconces, pendants and 
surface mounted ceiling lights shall be downlights, max 2700K LED or equivalent.  Type III and 
Type IV signs may be lit by a gooseneck fixture with focus specific to the sign.  Type II and Type 
IV service entries shall have fixtures with photocells that light from dusk to dawn.

3.	 Two exterior light fixtures maximum per house or live-work may face the street.  Other light 
sources should be concealed from exterior views.  Fixtures should be located to preclude glare.

4.	 Exterior light fixtures shall be compatible with the style of the building to which they are at-
tached.

5.	 Doors facing a street or a public space, and garage doors opening onto an alley or a flag lane, 
shall have a light fixture with a photocell that lights from dusk to dawn.

6.	 Uplighting, floodlighting and wall washing lighting shall be prohibited.  

7.	 All lighting should have a functional purpose.  Additional decorative lighting for Types III and IV 
only may be allowed by approval of TA.  External lighting of awnings may be permitted by ap-
proval of TA.  Backlighting of awnings from under or inside shall be prohibited.

8.	 Interior lighting of storefronts and exterior lighting of signs for Types III and IV is recommended 
throughout nighttime hours (or at a minimum until 11pm) to accentuate storefront displays, 
illuminate building details, and promote public safety. 

L. SIGNS

1.	 Postal numbers shall be placed on the principal building facade and on alley or rear parking en-
trances, and shall be maximum 6” tall.

2.	 Signs for streets and other public spaces, wayfinding, civic and shared facilities shall be of a uni-
fied design.

3.	 Signs for private buildings shall be made of wood, synthetic wood, brass, bronze, copper, 
wrought iron, ceramic, cast aluminum or thickly enameled steel.  All signs shall be subject to ap-
proval by TA.  Plastic signs or letters, backlit signs, and electronic or video screen signs shall be 
prohibited. 

4.	 One sign advertising a home-based business shall be permitted at each Frontage of a Type I 
or Type II building.  Signs advertising a home-based business shall be blade or window signs, 
a maximum size of 2 square feet. Signs may be mounted to a freestanding post, hung below a 
porch roof, or mounted to a building wall.  



44	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

5.	 One sign advertising a shopfront business shall be permitted at each Frontage of a Type III or 
Type IV building.  Signs advertising a shopfront business shall be blade or window signs, or a 
first floor sign band.

6.	 Blade signs for shopfront businesses shall be attached perpendicular to the façade; shall be at a 
height minimum 9’ above the pedestrian; shall extend horizontally maximum 3’; shall be max-
imum 2.5’ in vertical dimension, with a maximum overall size of 2.5 square feet, and a 15’ mini-
mum distance between blade signs.  Blade signs may be a representational silhouette in metal.

7.	 Window signs for shopfront businesses shall be inscribed on the shopfront glass or shall be 
made of permanently affixed cut-out lettering or hand-painted letters.  Neon signs on the inside 
of a Type III or Type IV shopfront window may be allowed by approval of TA.  

8.	 Sign bands for a shopfront businesses shall be an integral design with the storefront’s elevation 
and details, and may be a contrasting color to the building.  Sign bands may be up to 12 inches 
in height and may extend the entire length of the storefront. Sign bands shall not be internally 
illuminated but may be externally lit subject to the approval of TA.  

9.	 Signs for civic and shared facility buildings may be façade signs; shall be made of material and 
color to be integral with the building design; shall be maximum 2 feet in height by any length; 
shall not be translucent or internally illuminated; and may be externally lit. Brass or stainless 
steel may be used for signs mounted to masonry building walls.

10.	 One business hours sign of maximum 1 square foot advertising hours of operation and credit 
card acceptance shall be permitted at storefront entry.

11.	 One security system sign per frontage and one per service entry shall be permitted, maximum 
5” x 8”, attached to the building wall or a window.

12.	 Temporary A-frame signs of maximum 6 square feet each side may be placed on the sidewalk 
adjacent to the business during business hours, shall be made of wood, synthetic wood or met-
al, shall have a hand-crafted design, and shall be approved by TA.

13.	 One sign advertising a property for sale or rent is permitted at each frontage, maximum 5” x 8”, 
affixed to the building or on a post maximum 4 feet in height, for a maximum duration of 90 
days per year.

14.	 One sign per lot identifying the building contractor is permitted, maximum 2’ x 3’, on posts max-
imum 4 feet in height, for the duration of the construction only. 



45	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

6. SITE AND LANDSCAPE REGULATIONS

A. GENERAL 

1.	 The Site and Landscape Regulations are organized by these categories:

A.	 General
B.	 Public Space - Materials 
C.	 Public Space - Configuration and Technique  
D.	 Gardens - Materials 
E.	 Gardens - Configuration and Technique 
F.	 Fences, Walls, Pavements - Materials 
G.	 Fences, Walls, Pavements - Configuration and Technique 

2.	 The goal for the outdoor spaces and landscape improvements of Vista Field is to construct a 
landscape of plants native to the high desert location of Kennewick, including drought tolerant 
materials that can provide shade.  

3.	 Site designs shall minimize grading.  
4.	 Topographic transitions between improvements and existing grades or between Lots shall ap-

pear to be natural slopes or to be garden terraces.
5.	 All site drainage and water runoff from impervious surfaces shall be retained on the Lot that 

generates it.
6.	 Tree planting shall be considered permanent improvement of the community landscape.  Trees 

shall be selected from the 2018 Community Tree List of the Mid-Columbia Community Forestry 
Council.  Removal of trees larger then 4” caliper deciduous and 6” caliper conifer, shall require 
approval by TA.

B. PUBLIC SPACE - MATERIALS 

1.	 Public Space site materials shall be according to a masterplan that specifies location, dimen-
sions, at installation and at maturity, durability, and other characteristics that provide maximum 
safety and comfort, and are conceived of as part of a visually harmonious public realm. 

2.	 Public Space pavements shall be stone, brick, or concrete pavers and designed for maximum 
permeability: asphalt for driveways and parking lots, and poured concrete pavement for streets 
and sidewalks may be permitted by approval of TA. All pedestrian pavements shall have a non-
skid finish. 

C. PUBLIC SPACE - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE 

1.	 All site utilities shall be placed underground.  Above ground equipment shall be located in al-
leys or parking areas behind buildings and screened from view with walls and landscape.



46	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

D. GARDENS - MATERIALS

1.	 Garden planting materials shall be selected from the following plant lists: the Tree Lists by Ma-
ture Heights of the Community Tree List of the Mid-Columbia Community Forestry Council; and the 
Washington Native Plant Society’s WNPS Native Plants of Eastern WA brochure. 

2.	 Garden pavements shall be stone, brick, or concrete pavers and shall be designed to provide 
maximum permeability. 

E. GARDENS - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE 

1.	 Fenced areas and lawn areas shall be located and designed to be functional and geometrically 
defined for privacy, protection from the wind, and security of children and pets. Lawn areas 
shall be restricted to a functional space to minimize irrigation. 

2.	 Landscape irrigation shall be an underground or drip irrigation system and shall have retracting 
sprinkler heads or shall be otherwise visually unobtrusive. 

3.	 Garden planting may provide shade for adjacent Public Frontage, but shall not interfere with 
Public Space landscaping.

4.	 Hot tubs and pools shall be recessed in the ground and visually screened with a fence, wall or 
hedge.

5.	 Woodburning outdoor fireplaces and firepits may be allowed by approval of TA, and shall be 
separated from all combustible structures and trees by a minimum distance of 15 feet.

F. FENCES, WALLS, PAVEMENTS - MATERIALS 

1.	 Fences shall be made of wood pickets, painted or sealed and stained, or steel, wrought iron 
painted, or ESP aluminum.  Fence gates shall be made of the fence material.

2.	 Garden walls and retaining walls shall be made of architectural finish concrete, segmental block, 
brick or brick veneer, local stone or local stone veneer, and shall be capped.  Wall gates shall be 
made of wood, painted or sealed and stained, steel, wrought iron painted, or ESP aluminum. 

3.	 Trash yard and dumpster enclosures shall be made of concrete, wood sealed and stained or 
painted, or steel painted, with gates of wood or steel.

4.	 Hedges shall be made of plants selected from the Plant List.  Hedge gates shall be made of 
wood, painted or sealed and stained, steel, wrought iron painted or ESP aluminum, with fram-
ing structure of the same material.

5.	 Garden pavement shall be permeable and shall be made of, stone, concrete pavers, brick, brick 
pavers, wood, or gravel with aggregate maximum 1/4”.  

6.	 Gravel in front yards and at frontages shall be edged to prevent runover. 



47	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

7.	 All pedestrian pavements shall have a non-skid finish.

8.	 Driveway and parking lot pavement shall be made of asphalt, brick, brick pavers, or concrete.  
Concrete may be patterned but stamped concrete patterns shall be prohibited.  Driveway and 
parking lot materials shall be approved by TA.  

9.	 Gravel in front yards and at frontages shall be edged to prevent runover.  

G. FENCES, WALLS, PAVEMENTS - CONFIGURATION AND TECHNIQUE 

1.	 Fences, garden and retaining walls, and hedges, and their location and height shall be designed 
to coordinate with the design of the adjacent Public Frontage and neighboring lots.  

2.	 Fences, garden walls and hedges shall be located no closer to the street than the front façade of 
the building, and in Type III and Type IV located to screen parking lots from the street.

3.	 Fences and garden walls shall provide closure, starting and ending at a building wall or terminal 
post that is larger than the other fence posts. 

4.	 Fences and walls shall be a maximum 6’ above grade. Trashcan and dumpster enclosures shall 
be minimum as tall as the containers they conceal. 

5.	 Garden and retaining walls shall be minimum 8” wide and capped with overhang of ½” to 1’ on 
each side to protect from water intrusion.

6.	 Retaining walls shall be part of building foundations or shall be part of garden terracing. Retain-
ing walls shall follow required building setbacks, and shall be a maximum 4’ in height.  

7.	 Hedges may be a single type of plant or a mix of plants. At installation plants shall be 18” o.c. 
and a minimum 24” in height. Hedges shall be maintained to allow light to penetrate to all 
branches, tapered slightly to create a base that is wider than the top.  

8.	 Parking lots for Type III and Type IV buildings shall be planted to provide maximum shading 
of the pavement, with continuous tree islands perpendicular to the parking stalls, or tree dia-
monds with corners intersecting the striping with a maximum separation of four parking spac-
es.  Each tree shall have a minimum of 5’x 5’ planting area .



48	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



49	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

7. THOROUGHFARE REGULATIONS

1.	 The streets are the primary shared experience of Vista Field.  Their dimensions, pavements, 
lighting, and trees planted provide the visual ambience of the public realm.  Streets are also the 
main conveyance of utilities throughout the community and an important component of over-
all storm-water management.  These regulations are intended to encourage pedestrian mobil-
ity, minimize vehicular use, and minimize the intrusion of utilities on the visual and pedestrian 
experience. 

2.	 Shared facilities in the street rights-of-ways and other public spaces, including street lighting, 
street signs, trash cans, benches, electrical transformers, dumpster enclosures, and other utili-
ties, shall be of uniform design, approved and located by TA. 

3.	 Above ground utility components shall be placed at the rear of buildings rather than at Frontag-
es, shall be grouped and screened with landscape elements to minimize their visual impact.

4.	 Each street on a block by block basis shall have pavement and Public Frontages designed to 
provide place-specific character, taking into account topography, on-street parking, driveway 
entries, et al.  

5.	 Street intersections shall have a curb radius of 10’, with a clear zone radius of 25’. Parking shall be 
held back from an intersection minimum 20’.  

6.	 Alley and lane intersections with streets shall be designed to minimize visual impact of alley or 
lane on street frontage with building extensions and landscape screening.  



50	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



51	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

8. DESIGN REVIEW PROCEDURES

A. GENERAL 

All Public and Private building and landscape improvements shall be reviewed by the Vista Field 
Town Architect (TA) and shall require TA’s approval prior to commencement of construction. 

The TA shall approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove, submitted applications with explanato-
ry notification in writing to the applicant, including if possible the changes necessary for approval, 
within ten days of each of the following reviews.  The TA may approve deviations from the Regula-
tions based on the determination that the proposal fulfills the basic intent of the Regulations, offers 
a standard superior to that in the Regulations that is to be set aside, and is compatible with adjacent 
development.

B. SCHEMATIC DESIGN REVIEW. This review confirms conceptual conformance with the Develop-
ment Standards.  More than one scheme may be submitted.  Submit (two sets):

¾	 Lot Plan at 1”=20’  

¾	 Floor Plans at 1/8”=1’-0”

¾	 Elevations (at frontages) at 1/8”=1’-0” (or photo of each elevation if previously built 
on another lot)

C. DESIGN REVIEW. This review confirms compliance of the design details with the Regulations 
and verifies that previous recommendations made by TA have been incorporated.  Submit (two 
sets):

¾	 Lot Plan at 1/8”=1’-0”

¾	 Landscape Plan at 1”=20’

¾	 Floor Plans at 1/4”=1’-0”

¾	 Roof Plan at ¼”=1’-0”

¾	 Elevations (all) at 1/4”=1’-0”

¾	 Building Section at 1/4”=1’-0”

¾	 Wall Section & Details at 1-1/2”=1’-0”

¾	 Material List & Samples

¾	 Schematic Design Review comments



52	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

D. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS REVIEW.  Submit (two sets):

¾	 Construction Documents

¾	 Design Review comments

 If essentially the same building has been previously built on another lot submit the following to ap-
ply for simultaneous A, B and C reviews:

¾	 Lot Plan at 1/8”=1’-0”

¾	 Landscape Plan at 1”=20’

¾	 Previously reviewed Construction Documents.

¾	 Photo of each elevation of each previously built structure on most recent lot.

¾	 All changes from previously built structure(s) clearly noted.

E. CONSTRUCTION.  Plans approved by the Vista Field TA may proceed to the City of Kennewick for 
building permit, and subsequent inspections shall take place according to the City of Kennewick 
requirements.  

F. CHANGE DURING CONSTRUCTION. 

¾	 Changes during construction shall be approved by Vista Field TA prior to approval by 
City of Kennewick

¾	 Change during Construction Form

¾	 Additional information to describe changes

G. DESIGN REVIEW PROCEDURES CHECKLIST. 

Lot Plan
¾	 North arrow, scale

¾	 Property lines, dimensions and area

¾	 Easements

¾	 Building footprints with entries noted

¾	 Encroachments, if any, dimensioned

¾	 Sidewalks, driveways and patios



53	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

¾	 Finished floor elevations, existing & proposed grades

¾	 Existing trees over 3” caliper and other natural features

¾	 HVAC and other exterior equipment including lighting 

Landscape Plan

¾	 Names of all material

¾	 Size, quantity and location of all material, at installation and at maturity

¾	 Garden elements such as retaining walls, paved surfaces, trellises, arbors, fences, 
gates, etc.

Floor Plans

¾	 Room dimensions and uses labeled

¾	 Encroachments, if any, dimensioned

¾	 Roof drip line

Roof Plan

¾	 All roof penetrations

Elevations

¾	 Openings, doors, and windows

¾	 Materials rendered and specified, including color

¾	 Finished grade and finished floor elevations

¾	 Building height to eaves, ridges & parapet walls

¾	 Overall height from grade at front setback

¾	 Roof pitches



54	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

¾	 Open or closed eave condition if any

¾	 Awnings, signs, and lights if any

Wall Sections And Details

¾	 Openings, doors & windows (including heads and sills)

¾	 Porches and balconies including railings

¾	 Ornamental elements and trim

¾	 Inside & outs corners (pilasters, cor. boards, etc.)

¾	 Eaves and cornices

¾	 Dimensions of column centerline to:

¾	 Face of pier

¾	 Face of column at bottom of shaft (1st floor)

¾	 Face of column at top of shaft (1st floor)

¾	 Face of beam (1st floor)

¾	 If two-story porch:

¾	 Face of column at bottom of shaft (2nd floor)

¾	 Face of column at top of shaft (2nd floor)

¾	 Face of beam (2nd floor)

¾	 Fences and garden walls

¾	 Chimneys

Materials List (with manufacturer and product):

¾	 Roof, gutters and downspouts

¾	 Exterior walls and trim

¾	 Windows, doors and garage doors

¾	 Fence and garden walls

¾	 Sidewalk, driveway and patios



55	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS

This page is intentionally blank.



56	 DPZ CoDESIGN 						      VISTA FIELD DESIGN REGULATIONS



Page 1 of 3 

   

Memorandum  
 

To: Tim Arntzen 
From: Larry Peterson 

Date: August 24, 2021  

Re: Columbia Gardens Property Owners Association (POA) – Staff Recommendation(s)  

 
OVERVIEW 

The Port’s Columbia Gardens project has progressed to a point that land sales and subsequent 
private sector development is now possible. Many of the improvements that make the 
“neighborhood” a unique place, such as the loop roadway (Columbia Gardens Way), 30-space 

Date Street and 24-space Cedar Street parking lots, roadway & parking lot lighting, 700+ linear 
foot streetscape corridor, Food Truck Plaza and planned EV charging stations, future shipping 
container bathroom and the pending Kiwanis playground require perpetual maintenance.  The 

Commission has directed that a mechanism to equitably share some of the “neighborhood” 
expenses be presented for consideration.   

 
Following a staff presentation based upon a detailed memorandum with numerous potential 
scenarios the Commission asked for a staff recommendation.  The Commission indicated that 

the “neighborhood” should pay for some of the “neighborhood” expenses currently fully borne by 
the Port.  Any allocation method could be challenged as unfair to one party or another.  Two 

allocation methods which attempt to balance equity with realistic application are presented for 
consideration. 
 

ASSESSMENTS & ALLOCATIONS – 2 Methods Presented  
 
Equal assessments for each parcel contain the following key elements: 

❖ Port developed parcels & prorated assessments amounts are excluded; 
❖ (6) Neighborhood parcels pay for the Foundational items (roadway, sidewalks, parking lots); 

o Initial Neighborhood annual assessment is $26,000; 
❖ Port pays each property owners share for a 5-year period; 
✓ Assessment equally divided among the (6) Neighborhood parcels; 

 
Assessments based upon Building Size & Use contain the following key elements: 

❖ Neighborhood pays for the Foundational items (roadway, sidewalks, parking lots); 

o Initial Neighborhood annual assessment is $40,000; 
❖ Port pays each property owners share for a 5-year period; 

✓ Assessments based upon building gross square footage;  
✓ Hospitality space assessed at 100%, warehouse & production space assessed at 50%; 

 

Pages 2 and 3 contains simplified summaries of expenses and allocations for each method and a 
neighborhood map and the supporting detailed expense and allocation worksheets for the 

building size and use method {the math is shown} are attached at the end of this memo. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 



Each property is identified by a number and few with a letter suffix too, as further parcel division is anticipated.

x2,458

x10,320

x38,278

x

1,000

10,000

5,500

5,500

3,500



updated August 19, 2021 @ 12:30pm

EXPENSE
% Amount % Amount

FOUNDATIONAL ITEMS $40,000 100% $40,000 0% $0

PLAYGROUND $20,000 0% $0 100% $20,000

BATHROOM (Container) $14,000 0% $0 100% $14,000

FOOD TRUCKS $10,000 0% $0 100% $10,000
(NET Operational 

Loss)

EV CHARGING STATIONS $1,000 0% $0 100% $1,000
(NET Operational 

Loss)

VIBRANCY FUND $25,000 0% $0 100% $25,000

TOTALS $110,000 $40,000 $70,000

(excludes: Any attempt to amortized 

initial costs)

(includes: N/A)

(excludes: N/A)

ELEMENTS

(excludes: Any attempt to amortized 

initial costs)

(includes: Cleaning, Maintenance & 

Security)

(excludes: Any attempt to amortized 

initial costs)

(includes: Electricity, Water, Grease Trap 

Cleaning; Security Patrols AND Lease 

Revenues)

(excludes: Any attempt to amortized 

initial costs; Mural, Landscape on 421 

site)

(includes: Electricity, Maintenance; 

Annual $240 per Station payment to 

SEAMconnect AND Charging Station 

COLUMBIA GARDENS EXPENSE SUMMARY
RESPONSIBLE PARTY SHARE

NEIGHBORHOOD PORT DISTRICT

(includes: Loop Road, Parking Lots, 

Sidewalks; Lighting; Landscape; Public 

Restroom; Artwork; Security Patrols)

(excludes: Any attempt to amortized 

initial costs; Mural, Landscape on 421 

site)

(includes: Maintenance; Insurance; 

Security Patrols)



updated August 19, 2021 @ 12:30pm

ADDRESS AREA/BUILDING POTENTIAL FUTURE Present Future Present Future Area / 1,000  = SHARE (Area / 1,000) x Factor = SHARE Share % of Total Annual Monthly

1 Roads Loop Road, Plaza, 6‐Food Truck 

spots, 4 parking spaces

8'x20' Shipping Container‐

Bathroom

2 Date St. Parking Lot (30 spaces) 8'x40' Shipping Container‐

Retail

3 Cedar St. Parking Lot (24 spaces) 2 EV Charging Stations

4 A 340 CG Way A Vacant Building 0 1,000 0 4,000 1,000 / 1,000 = 1.00 4,000 / 1,000 x 33% = 1.32 2.32 10.48% $4,191 $349
4 B 340 CG Way B Vacant Building 0 1,000 0 4,000 1,000 / 1,000 = 1.00 4,000 / 1,000 x 33% = 1.32 2.32 10.48% $4,191 $349
5 225 E. Col Dr. Vacant Building 0 1,000 0 0 1,000 / 1,000 = 1.00 0 / 1,000 x 33% = 0.00 1.00 4.52% $1,807 $151
6 A 211 E. Col Dr. A Vacant Building 0 1,000 0 4,500 1,000 / 1,000 = 1.00 4,500 / 1,000 x 33% = 1.49 2.49 11.22% $4,490 $374
6 B 211 E. Col Dr. B Vacant‐Hold Parking Lot (32+ spaces)

7 275 CG Way Building Building 0 2,000 0 3,500 2,000 / 1,000 = 2.00 3,500 / 1,000 x 33% = 1.16 3.16 14.25% $5,700 $475
8 301 CG Way Building Building 0 3,500 0 0 3,500 / 1,000 = 3.50 0 / 1,000 33% = 0.00 3.50 15.81% $6,323 $527
9 325 CG Way Tasting Room 2,458 0 0 0 2,458 / 1,000 = 2.46 0 / 1,000 33% = 0.00 2.46 11.10% $4,441 $370
10 421 E. Col Dr. 3 Buildings  & 22 parking spaces 2,234 0 8,086 0 2,234 / 1,000  = 2.23 8,086 / 1,000 x 33% = 2.67 4.90 22.14% $8,857 $738

4,692 9,500 8,086 16,000 14.19 7.95 22.14 100.00% $40,000 $3,333

PARCEL 

ASSESSMENT

14,192 24,086

38,278

HOSPITALITY OTHER HOSPITALITY

PARCEL ID

OTHER (Warehouse/Production)

COLUMBIA GARDENS ALLOCATION SUMMARY (based upon Building Size & Use)

USES and OWNERSHIP Info BUILDING SIZES by USE "SHARE" = Area/1000 "SHARE"  = (Area/1000)  x Factor TOTAL 

SHARES





  

          AGENDA REPORT  
 

TO:     Port Commission 

  

FROM:   Nick Kooiker, CFO  

 

MEETING DATE:   August 24, 2021 

 

AGENDA ITEM:      Approval of CEO goals #5 2019/20, and #4 2021/22 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I. REFERENCE(S):   Resolution 2021-14 

Exhibit A – Goals & Objectives Listing (March 9th, 2021)   

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 

 

III. DISCUSSION:  I have prepared a resolution for formal approval by the Commission of 

two CEO goals and objectives.  As referenced in the resolution, the Commission has 

approved the Historic Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan and the final documents have 

been signed for the 1135 USACE Shoreline Project.  These two goals have been completed, 

but I prefer having the resolution for documentation and auditing purposes. 

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 2021-14. 

 

V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2021-14, accepting as 

complete goal #5 of the CEO’s 2019/20 goals and objectives, and 

goal #4 of the CEO’s 2021/22 goals and objectives. 
 



  

PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

 

Resolution No. 2021-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FORMALIZING COMPLETION OF  

GOAL #5 OF CEO’S 2019/20 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES and 

GOAL #4 OF CEO’S 2021/22 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 WHEREAS, the Commission approved goals and objectives for the Port CEO, attached 

as Exhibit “A” and last modified on March 9th, 2021; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer presented the Waterfront Master Plan for 

Commission consideration and approval on June 22, 2021, thus completing Goal #5 of the 

CEO’s 2019/20 Goals and Objectives; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission approved Resolution 2021-12 adopting the Waterfront 

Master Plan on June 22nd, 2021; and 

 

 WHEREAS, an update regarding the 1135 Project was presented to the Port Commission 

on May 11th, 2021 reporting that the Port’s CEO and the Walla Walla Army Corps of Engineers 

Commander signed the Cost Share Agreement.  The Commission authorized Warrant #102897 in 

the amount of $1,654,000 for the Port’s matching funds to commence construction of the Clover 

Island 1135 shoreline rehabilitation project.  At the August 10th, 2021 Commission Meeting, it 

was reported the project was awarded and will begin August 25th, 2021; thus completing Goal 

#4 of the CEO’s 2021/22 Goals and Objectives; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to formally accept as complete Goal #5 of the 

CEO’s 2019/20 Goals and Objectives and Goal #4 of the CEO’s 2021/22 Goals and Objectives 

related to these items. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of 

the Port of Kennewick hereby accepts as complete Goal #5 of the CEO’s 2019/20 Goals and 

Objectives, and Goal #4 of the CEO’s 2021/22 Goals and Objectives. 

 

 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 24th day of 

August, 2021.  

PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

 By:  _______________________________ 
 

  DON BARNES, President 

       

 By:   _______________________________ 
 

  SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Vice President 

 

 By: _______________________________ 
 

  THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 

 



Exhibit "A"

EXHIBIT A CEO 2021/22 Goals & Objectives (including update on 2019/20 ongoing goals)

DATE:

GOAL & OBJECTIVE
ACTION

STATUS 
(checkmark = 
Completed) COMMENTS

1

2

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

March 9, 2021

TACTICAL STEPS

2019/2020 Goals and Objectives Carryover

Unattainable until the Port has recorded lots to sell.  Completion scheduled in Fall 2020.  However, the Port has had 
substantial interest from developers.

Vista Field

2019/20 GOAL
Completion of Phase 1A construction.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission for 
substantial completion

95% Complete Anticipate Commission acceptance before end of 2020.

Vista Field

2019/20 GOAL
Sell one parcel or obtain one ground lease (does not include Arts Center Task Force).

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

25% complete

Clover Island

2019/20 GOAL Present for Commission consideration of the Waterfront master plan.
Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

30% complete Estimated completion in Spring 2021.

2021/2022 Goals and Objectives

Port Adminstration

2021/22 GOAL Prepare "Back to Work" plan for Port staff in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Kennewick Waterfront

2021/22 GOAL

Vista Field

2021/22 GOAL
Develop a Vista Hangar analysis to include lean renovation options (with RCCF partnership 
funds) and viability/potential for selling on a ground lease.

Considered complete 
when presented to 
Commission.

By consensus Commission approved this as a goal on 9/8/2020

Finalize execution agreements as necessary to commence construction of Clover Island 1135 
shoreline rehabilitation project.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Kennewick Waterfront

2021/22 GOAL Implement the identified Duffy's Pond tenant-improvements and algae mitigation plan.
Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Vista Field

2021/22 GOAL
Implement the Vista Field "Team Approach", including cost estimates and proposed plan 
forward for the Port.

Considered complete 
when presented to 
Commission.

Kennewick Waterfront

2021/22 GOAL
Prepare a report discusing the likelihood, feasbility of, and costs for Columbia Gardens Wine & 
Artisan Village wayfinding signage and the children's playground partnership project on the 
historic waterfront.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.



Exhibit "A"

GOAL & OBJECTIVE
ACTION

STATUS 
(checkmark = 
Completed) COMMENTSTACTICAL STEPS

7

8

9

10Port Adminstration
2021/22 GOAL

Complete Governance Audit as a top priority project as directed by the Commission on 
2/9/2021

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Districtwide

2021/22 GOAL
Prepare a COVID-19 economic-impact outlook analysis, which obtains professional data, 
advice, and other indicators regarding potential economic and business impacts to the Port.

Considered complete 
when presented to 
Commission.

By consensus Commission approved this as a goal on 9/8/2020

Districtwide
2021/22 GOAL

Complete Laserfiche training and implementation of procedures related to documentation, 
filing, paperless review, digital signature, and internal document workflow processing.

Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.

Districtwide

2021/22 GOAL Prepare a report which evaluates maintenance facility needs and possible alternatives.
Considered complete 
when  presented to 
Commission.


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



